
Chehalem Heritage Trails Advisory Committee

AGENDA
August 9, 2023 | 6:30 - 8:00 p.m.

Attend either in person on-site at CPRD Admin Office
or remotely via Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89157263898

Meeting ID: 891 5726 3898

Committee Members:
Michelle Colvin

Quentin Comus (Chair)
Matt Dolphin
Allen Holstein
Kimberly Lanier

Committee Members (Continued):
Bob Oleson
Martin Peters
Cindy Riggs

Erin Robinson (Secretary)
Peter Siderius

Board Liaisons:
Jason Fields
Jim McMaster

CPRD Staff:
Casey Creighton

Kat Ricker
Bryan Stewart

I. Call to Order

II. Attendance Roll Call

III. Introduction of New Board Liaison, Jason Fields (Quentin)

IV. Approval of June Meeting Minutes (Quentin)

○ See Appendix A

V. Public Comment Period

Public participation in Chehalem Heritage Trails Advisory Committee meetings is encouraged. Those interested may submit

written comments to kricker@cprdnewberg.org or provide oral comments at a public committee meeting. Those wishing to

provide oral comments will be provided a set amount of time determined by the Chair at the beginning of the meeting during

the designated public comment period. This public comment period may last up to a maximum of 10 minutes.

VI. Work Party Reflection (Matt)

VII. Community Trails Survey Update (Quentin)

○ See Appendices B and C

○ Potential Motion: Recommend CPRD administer the CHTAC Community Trails Survey as

presented on behalf of the Chehalem Heritage Trails Advisory Committee.

VIII. Additional Committee Member Discussion (Quentin)

IX. Next Steps Discussion (Quentin)

○ Ewing Young Park

○ Newberg-Dundee Bypass Trail

○ Bob and Crystal Rilee Park

X. Board of Directors Meeting Report (Quentin)

XI. Adjourn

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89157263898


Important Reminders/Notes:
● Thursday, August 24, 2023: CPRD Board of Directors Meeting at the CPRD Administrative Office and

on Zoom at 6 p.m.

● Wednesday, September 13, 2023: CHTAC Regular Meeting at the CPRD Administrative Office and on

Zoom at 6:30 p.m.



Chehalem Heritage Trails Advisory Committee 

MINUTES 
June 14, 2023 | 6:30 - 8:00 p.m. 

Attend either in person on-site at CPRD Admin Office  
or remotely via Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89157263898 

Meeting ID: 891 5726 3898 

Green attended in person – Blue attended via Zoom – Black not in attendance 

Committee Members: 

Michelle Colvin 

Quentin Comus (Chair) 

Matt Dolphin 

Allen Holstein 

Kimberly Lanier 

Committee Members (Continued): 

Bob Oleson 

Martin Peters 

Cindy Riggs 

Erin Robinson (Secretary) 

Peter Siderius 

Board Liaisons: 

Bart Rierson 

Jim McMaster 

CPRD Staff: 

Casey Creighton 

Kat Ricker 

Bryan Stewart

Brian Bowman – also in attendance 

I. Call to Order

II. Attendance Roll Call

III. Approval of May Meeting Minutes – Moved – 2nd and approved

○ See Appendix A

IV. Public Comment Period

Public participation in Chehalem Heritage Trails Advisory Committee meetings is encouraged. Those interested may submit

written comments to kricker@cprdnewberg.org or provide oral comments at a public committee meeting. Those wishing to

provide oral comments will be provided a set amount of time determined by the Chair at the beginning of the meeting during

the designated public comment period. This public comment period may last up to a maximum of 10 minutes.

Brian Bowman – appreciates the trail work day – great to get the students out to work with the

NIKA program

V. Work Party Reflection (Quentin)

○ Martin - 85 signed in – blazed some trail – trail maintenance – bark dust

○ Cindy – promoted

○ Matt & Marty did lots of on site work – Brian Bowman helped coordinate

○ CPRD team was a great help

○ Was a wonderful success

○ Casey – wants to thank the Committee and the organization

○ Great introduction to trail work – and to see the park

APPENDIX A

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89157263898


○ Matt – would like to work with 12 or so people every quarter or so

1. Equestrian folks are also interested in work on their side

2. We could also consider additional parks

3. We should focus less on bike v. equestrian – because everyone can work together for

trails – Kat has lots of names of equestrian folks

4. We could use more tools – PPE for trail maintenance etc.

a) Bryan can take care of that – Matt will coordinate

○ Michelle – we need more brochures for Wednesday Market – ask Kat – Cindy says she will pick

up more before next week

○ Quentin’s roommate has competed some maps – to be continued

○ Casey – Wednesday June 21, 6pm at Chehalem Cultural Center Master Plan for the Rilee Park

Master Plan

VI. Community Trails Survey Update (Quentin)

○ See Appendices B and C

1. Quentin – has talked to many people and is satisfied with the content of the survey –

a) Sees issues with the Yamhela Westsider Trail

b) Is the right time – we need to ask the community the issues that will allow us to

bring the community together

c) Quentin would plan to present this to the board

2. Casey – recommendation is to go and ask the board – there could be room in the budget

if the board wants to pursue

a) Yamhelas Westsider’s Trail – people didn’t talk

3. Matt – is impressed with the thoroughness of the report

a) Concerns – great idea but not sure on timing

b) Why put the money and resources into this

c) Sat with farmers – have some valid concerns and also don’t

4. Erin – mirrors Matt’s concern

5. Bart – wait and take the temperature – he would now like to retract previous statement

after listening to Quentin’s speech

○ Potential Motion: Recommend to the CPRD Board of Directors that CPRD administer the

CHTAC Community Trails Survey as (Option A/Option B) presented in the CHTAC Community

Trails Survey Proposal.

○ Motion – to table this until October, 2023 – and seconded - FAILED

1. Yay – 2 Nay- 3 abstain - 2

2. Quentin – people are coming from all different aspects – strategic engagement



a) There are ways with the software regarding response and who those people are

b) Closed survey – simple random sample of the 30,000 CPRD residence can

complete the survey once through the mail

3. Erin – I need more specific information about how this will be an accurate survey – I am

also not convinced that this survey will convince anyone to sway from their ideologies

4. Marty – temperature and space – but knowing that they have already shared it with new

board members – recommend the survey in June – but pause on the specifics until July

a) Vehicle that incoming board could hear from the community

5. Cindy – would like it before the new board rather – and they do want to spend the money

on it

a) What about reaching out to the commissioners?

(1) Quentin has talked to Jason about a line of communication to the

commissioners

6. Brian Bowman – propose a survey every 4-6 years to get a census of the community

regarding trails – CPRD taxpayers could have a voice

7. Matt – would like more time to look at the questions and make some amendments –

great idea and feedback but the power to sway and convincing groups is uphill

a) Pushing things at this point won’t make things more comfortable

○ Motion – to table this until August 9, 2023 – and seconded - PASSED

○ Yay – 6 Nay – 0 Abstain - 1

1. Quentin – what if we reschedule our meeting for July.

2. Erin we should attend the CPRD board meeting – in lieu our meeting on July 12th we

should

○ We will cancel our July 12th meeting and attend the CPRD board meeting on July 12th special

session – at 6pm

VII. In-Person Trail User Survey Preparations (Quentin)

○ Motion – to table this until August 9, 2023 – and seconded - PASSED

○ Yay – 7 Nay – 0 Abstain - 0

○ See Appendix D

VIII. Public Awareness and Outreach Campaign Discussion (Quentin)

○ Draft CHTAC Website: www.chtac.org

○ See Appendix E

○ Quentin – basic outline of an idea – theme – common phrases that work for all

1. Funding available for students to be bused to parks – good fieldtrip opportunities

2. Community Fairs

○ Bart – an opportunity Old Fashioned Festival Booth – informal surveys

http://www.chtac.org/


○ Michelle – families – schools

○ Cindy – we need more volunteers in the committee to do outreach

IX. Board of Directors Meeting Report (Quentin)

○ Quentin did attend and speak in May – Newberg Graphic had an article

1. Cancellation of LUBA out of concern of taxpayer funds

2. Trail funding is an issue

3. Allen made a comment in May

4. Michelle – we should post any pictures on social media and website to tell the

community what was done

5. Cindy – Wednesday Market has lots of enthusiasm

X. Adjourn – 7:58pm

Important Reminders/Notes: 

● Wednesday, June 21, 2023: Bob and Crystal Rilee Park Master Plan Open House at the Chehalem

Cultural Center Ballroom at 6 p.m.

● Thursday, June 29, 2023: CPRD Board of Directors Meeting at the CPRD Administrative Office and on

Zoom at 6 p.m.

● Wednesday, July 12, 2023: CHTAC Regular Meeting at the CPRD Administrative Office and on Zoom

at 6:30 p.m.



DR
AF
T

CPRD Chehalem Heritage Trails
Advisory Committee - Community Trails
Survey Funding and Administration
Proposal

Introduction
The purpose of this project is to conduct a comprehensive survey of Chehalem Park and
Recreation District (CPRD) residents regarding their usage, attitudes, and perceptions of local
trails. This survey will be distributed as a closed simple random sample using physical mailers to
engage a representative sample of our community. The data collected will guide future trail
development and maintenance efforts, ensuring that our trails continue to meet the needs and
expectations of our residents.

Research Questions
The survey will focus on the following key research areas:

● Demographics:What is the demographic profile of our trail users?
● Usage Behavior:What activities do residents engage in while on the trails? What are

their preferences for different types of trails?
● Attitudes: How do trail users perceive the importance of trails for their personal health,

well-being, and community value? What do they appreciate most about the trails? What
would they like to see improved? What are their concerns?

● Trail Conditions:What is the user's assessment of the current conditions of the trail
they are using? Are there specific areas or issues they believe need attention?

Survey Design
The survey will be designed using Qualtrics, a professional online survey tool, and will consist of
four sections corresponding to the research areas. The survey will include a mix of
multiple-choice, Likert scale, and open-ended questions to capture diverse and comprehensive
responses. The survey will be designed to be user-friendly and take no more than 15 minutes to
complete to respect the respondents' time.

APPENDIX B



DR
AF
T

Distribution Strategy
The survey will be distributed to a simple random sample of registered voters within CPRD
using an initial physical mailer. Non-respondents will receive a follow-up mailer approximately
two weeks following the initial mailer.

Data Analysis
The data will be analyzed using Qualtrics' built-in analytics tools and additional statistical
software as needed. Both descriptive and inferential statistical methods will be used to analyze
the data. The findings will be presented in a comprehensive report that includes an executive
summary, data visualizations, and actionable recommendations.

Ethical Considerations
All respondents will be informed about the purpose of the survey, how their data will be used,
and their rights as participants. Participation will be voluntary, and no personally identifiable
information will be collected to ensure privacy. The only exception is asking for the personal
email address of respondents who are interested in learning more and/or being entered into the
prize drawing. While surveys will be attached to a unique identification number (access code),
survey results will not be associated with this information.

Mitigating Survey Errors, Tampering, and Other
Related Concerns

Data Quality
To ensure the quality and reliability of the data we collect, the following measures will be
implemented:

● Pre-testing: Before launching the survey, it will be pre-tested with a small group of
participants. This will allow us to identify and correct any ambiguous or misleading
questions, technical issues, or other potential sources of error.

● Instructions and Guidance: Clear instructions and definitions will be provided where
necessary to ensure that respondents understand the questions and respond accurately.

● Mandatory Questions: Some questions will be set as mandatory to prevent missing
data and malfunctioning question logic, with “no response” options as appropriate.



DR
AF
T

Survey Tampering
To prevent fraudulent responses and tampering, the following security measures will be
implemented:

● Unique Identification Numbers (Access Codes): Each survey mailer will include a
unique identification number, or access code, that must be entered into the survey
before the response can be recorded. This will prevent multiple responses from the
same mailing address and responses from outside the sample group.

● IP Duplication Check: Qualtrics provides an option to prevent multiple responses from
the same IP address. This will be enabled to minimize the risk of one person submitting
multiple responses, but no IP addresses will be collected and accessible to the survey
host.

● CAPTCHA: Implementing CAPTCHA at the start of the survey can ensure the
respondent is not a bot.

● Data Scrutiny: Data will be regularly reviewed for patterns that may suggest fraudulent
responses, such as identical concurrent responses, rapid completion times, or
nonsensical open-ended responses.

Privacy Concerns
We are committed to maintaining the privacy and confidentiality of all survey participants. The
following measures will be in place to protect participant information:

● Anonymity:While we will be collecting email addresses for the purpose of the prize
draw, this information will be kept separate from the survey responses to ensure
responses are anonymous.

● Data Security: Data will be stored securely in the Qualtrics platform, which employs
robust data security measures.

● Transparency: Participants will be fully informed about the purpose of the survey, what
the data will be used for, how their privacy will be protected, and that their email will only
be used for the purpose of the prize draw.

Mitigating Non-Response Errors
Non-response errors occur when respondents differ in meaningful ways from non-respondents.
To mitigate this:

● Incentives: As mentioned earlier, offering a chance to win a family membership to the
Chehalem Aquatic and Fitness Center can encourage participation.

● Follow-Up: For those who have not completed an initiated survey, the Qualtrics system
will send reminders to encourage them to finish the initiated survey. For those who have
not completed the survey within two weeks of receiving the first mailer, a second mailer
will be sent to non-respondents. This can potentially increase response rates by 200
percent.

● Ease of Participation: The survey will be designed to be quick and easy to complete,
reducing the time commitment required.



DR
AF
T

Mitigating Coverage Errors
Coverage errors happen when some members of the population are inadequately represented
in the survey. To address this:

● Wide Distribution: One unavoidable consequence of prioritizing survey security is a
narrow and closed survey sample. As such, a sample size large enough to garner
statistically significant data will be utilized.

● Accessibility: The survey will be made available in a digital formats designed with
universal design principles in mind to accommodate different preferences and
accessibility needs.

Mitigating Measurement Errors
Measurement errors occur when responses are inaccurate or misinterpreted. To reduce these
errors:

● Clear Instructions: The survey will include clear instructions and definitions to ensure
respondents understand the questions.

● Pre-testing: The survey will be pre-tested to identify and correct potential sources of
misunderstanding or ambiguity.

Mitigating Sampling Errors
Sampling errors occur when the sample is not representative of the population. To mitigate this:

● Broad Outreach: The simple random sample utilized to select participants will
encompass the entire CPRD, hopefully providing a representative sample of the survey
population.

● Randomization: The random prize drawing can encourage a wider demographic to
participate, thereby reducing the risk of over-representation of certain groups.

Budget
● Oregon SOS Voter Registration List: $50
● Initial Printing and Mailing (SRS of 5,000 CPRD voters): $3,820

○ #10 Security Envelopes: $570
○ Printed Survey Invitation: $500
○ Postage: $2,750

● Follow-Up Printing and Mailing (Approximately 4,800 CPRD voters): $3,690
○ #10 Security Envelopes: $570
○ Printed Survey Reminder: $480
○ Postage: $2,640

● Survey Incentive (Quarterly Family Membership to the Chehalem Aquatic and Fitness
Center): $235

● Contingency: $500



DR
AF
T

Total budget: $8,245
Without reminder: $4,605

Timeline
● May 15-August 9: Finalize survey questions, distribution, and administration
● August 9: Seek approval from the CHTAC
● August 24: Seek approval from the CPRD Board of Directors
● August 25-31: Prepare and distribute physical and digital promotional materials
● September 1-30: Survey is open for responses
● October 1-10: Close survey, perform data analysis, prepare report and presentation
● October 11: Distribute results to stakeholders, present results to the CHTAC
● October 26: Present to the CPRD Board of Directors

Data Analysis
Upon the closure of the survey, a comprehensive analysis will be conducted using Qualtrics'
analytics capabilities. This will include standard descriptive statistics (mean, median, mode,
range), as well as more advanced inferential statistics to test for significant differences among
groups (such as ANOVA or t-tests). Cross-tabulation will be used to explore relationships
between different variables, such as age and frequency of trail usage or resident status and trail
improvement suggestions.

Post-Survey Presentation and Distribution
The results will be presented in a comprehensive report that includes visual data
representations such as charts and graphs, as well as narrative interpretations of the data. In
addition to presenting the report to the Chehalem Park and Recreation District Board of
Directors, it will be made available for public viewing on the District's website. A summary of the
findings will also be shared with the community through various channels, such as newsletters,
social media posts, press releases, and public meetings.

Data Use/Implementation
The data obtained from the survey will be used to inform decisions about trail maintenance,
development, and policy. This may include identifying priority areas for improvement, developing
new trails based on user demand, and implementing policy changes to improve user
experience. Furthermore, the survey data will also be valuable for grant writing, fundraising
efforts, and legislative (policy) advocacy as it provides concrete evidence of community needs
and desires.



DR
AF
T

Long-term, the survey data can be used as a baseline for future surveys, allowing the District to
track changes in trail usage and satisfaction over time. This will support continuous
improvement and ensure that the trail system continues to meet the needs of the community.

Conclusion
The proposed Community Trails Survey is a comprehensive effort to understand the needs,
preferences, and usage patterns of our trail system from those who use it most - our residents.
By using a combination of digital and traditional survey distribution methods, we aim to reach a
broad spectrum of our community and gather a diverse array of responses.

With careful planning and execution, this survey will provide us with invaluable insights to shape
the future of our trails. Not only will it help us prioritize improvements and allocate resources
effectively, but it will also strengthen our relationship with the community by demonstrating our
commitment to their views and experiences.

While we have made every effort to mitigate potential survey errors and biases, we recognize
that no survey is perfect. However, we firmly believe that the data we collect will be robust and
representative enough to guide our decision-making process.

Finally, we understand that conducting the survey is just the first step. The real work begins
when we analyze the data and translate the insights into tangible actions. We are committed to
being transparent about this process and sharing our findings with the community. After all,
these trails belong to all of us, and their future should be shaped by all of us.



Page 1 of 30 

CPRD Community Trails Survey 

Start of Block: Introduction 

Q1 Welcome to the Chehalem Heritage Trails Advisory Committee's Community Trails Survey. 
This survey aims to gather your insights about local trails, your usage patterns, and your 
thoughts on future trail development within the Chehalem Park and Recreation District. 
For the purpose of this survey, a recreational trail is defined as, "a thoroughfare or track across 
land or snow, used for recreational purposes including pedestrian activities, equestrian 
activities, bicycling, and aquatic or water activities." (23 U.S.C. 206 (a)(2)) 

Your responses will help inform our efforts to improve the trail system and better serve our 
community. The survey should take about 15 minutes to complete. All responses are 
confidential and will be reported only in aggregate form. Upon completion of this survey, you 
may choose to be entered into a random prize drawing for a one (1) quarter Chehalem Aquatic 
and Fitness Center Family Membership. 

Thank you for your participation! 

Q36 reCAPTCHA Verification 

End of Block: Introduction 

Start of Block: Recreation Attitudes and Behaviors 

Q1 How often did you visit trails within the Chehalem Park and Recreation District in the last 12 
months? 

o Daily  (1)

o Weekly  (2)

o Monthly  (3)

o Less than Once a Month  (4)

o Did Not Visit Trails in Past 12 Months  (5)

APPENDIX C



 Page 2 of 30 

 
Page Break  
  



 Page 3 of 30 

Display This Question: 

If Q1 != Did Not Visit Trails in Past 12 Months 

 
Q2 What trails do you typically use within the Chehalem Park and Recreation District? (select all 
that apply) 

▢ Bob and Crystal Rilee Park trails  (1)  

▢ Chehalem Glenn Golf Course trails  (2)  

▢ Crabtree Park trails  (3)  

▢ Crater Park walking paths  (4)  

▢ Ewing Young Park trails  (5)  

▢ Herbert Hoover Park walking paths  (6)  

▢ Jaquith Park walking paths  (7)  

▢ Schaad Park trails  (8)  

▢ Urban Newberg walking paths  (9)  

▢ Urban Dundee walking paths  (10)  

▢ Other (please specify)  (11) 
__________________________________________________ 

 
 
Page Break  
  



Page 4 of 30 

Display This Question: 

If Q1 != Did Not Visit Trails in Past 12 Months 

Q3 What recreational activities do you participate in when you use trails? (select all that apply) 

▢ Biking  (1)

▢ Birdwatching/Nature Observation  (2)

▢ Dog Walking  (3)

▢ Horseback Riding  (4)

▢ Picnicking  (5)

▢ Running/Jogging  (6)

▢ Walking  (7)

▢ Other (please specify)  (8)
__________________________________________________

Page Break 



 Page 5 of 30 

Display This Question: 

If Q1 != Did Not Visit Trails in Past 12 Months 

 
 
Q4 What are your motivations to use trails? (select all that apply) 

▢ Develop Community  (1)  

▢ Enjoy Nature  (2)  

▢ Escape Personal/Social Pressures  (3)  

▢ Family Togetherness  (4)  

▢ Learn New Things  (5)  

▢ Meet New People  (6)  

▢ Physical Fitness  (7)  

▢ Release Energy/Explore  (8)  

▢ Other (please specify)  (9) 
__________________________________________________ 

 
 
Page Break  
  



 Page 6 of 30 

Display This Question: 

If Q1 = Did Not Visit Trails in Past 12 Months 

 
Q5 What are your reason(s) for not using trails? (select all that apply) 

▢ Health Issues  (1)  

▢ Lack of Accessibility  (2)  

▢ Lack of Internet  (3)  

▢ Lack of Time  (4)  

▢ Safety Concerns  (5)  

▢ Other (please specify)  (6) 
__________________________________________________ 

 

End of Block: Recreation Attitudes and Behaviors  
Start of Block: Benefits and Concerns 
 
Q6 How important do you think local trails are to the community? 

o Not Important at All  (1)  

o Slightly Important  (2)  

o Somewhat Important  (3)  

o Moderately Important  (4)  

o Extremely Important  (5)  
 
 
Page Break  
  



 Page 7 of 30 

 
Q38 How important are local trails to you and your family? 

o Not Important at All  (1)  

o Slightly Important  (2)  

o Somewhat Important  (3)  

o Moderately Important  (4)  

o Extremely Important  (5)  
 
 
Page Break  
  



 Page 8 of 30 

 
Q7 What do you believe are the benefits of local trails? 
 Indicate how much you personally agree with the following statements. 

 Strongly 
Disagree (1) 

Somewhat 
disagree (2) 

Neither agree 
nor disagree 

(3) 

Somewhat 
agree (4) 

Strongly 
agree (5) 

Improving 
physical health 
is a benefit of 

trails. (1)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Enhancing 
mental health 
is a benefit of 

trails. (2)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Providing 
opportunities 

for social 
interaction is a 

benefit of 
trails. (3)  

o  o  o  o  o  
Enhancing 

local tourism is 
a benefit of 
trails. (4)  

o  o  o  o  o  
Improving 
community 

connectedness 
is a benefit of 

trails. (5)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Improving 
property 

values is a 
benefit of 
trails. (6)  

o  o  o  o  o  
Other (please 
specify) (7)  o  o  o  o  o  

 
 
 
Page Break  
  



 Page 9 of 30 

 
Q8 What do you believe are the concerns of local trails? 
 Indicate how much you personally agree with the following statements. 

 Strongly 
Disagree (1) 

Somewhat 
disagree (2) 

Neither agree 
nor disagree 

(3) 

Somewhat 
agree (4) 

Strongly 
agree (5) 

Safety 
(personal 

security) is a 
concern of 
trails. (1)  

o  o  o  o  o  
Environmental 

impact is a 
concern of 
trails. (2)  

o  o  o  o  o  
Overcrowding 
is a concern of 

trails. (3)  o  o  o  o  o  
Infringement 

of private 
property rights 
is a concern of 

trails. (4)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Homelessness 
is a concern of 

trails. (5)  o  o  o  o  o  
Development 

and 
maintenance 

costs is a 
concern of 
trails. (6)  

o  o  o  o  o  
Conflict 
between 

different user 
groups (e.g. 
bikers and 

walkers) is a 
concern of 
trails. (7)  

o  o  o  o  o  

Other (please 
specify) (8)  o  o  o  o  o  

 
 



Page 10 of 30 

Page Break 



 Page 11 of 30 

 
Q9 Do you believe trails contribute to the following aspects? 
 Indicate how much you personally agree with the following statements. 

 Strongly 
Disagree (1) 

Somewhat 
disagree (2) 

Neither agree 
nor disagree 

(3) 

Somewhat 
agree (4) 

Strongly 
agree (5) 

Trails 
contribute to 

a positive 
quality of life. 

(1)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Trails 
contribute to 

economic 
viability. (2)  

o  o  o  o  o  
Trails 

contribute to 
environmental 
conservation. 

(3)  
o  o  o  o  o  

 
 
 
Page Break  
  



 Page 12 of 30 

 
Q10 Do you believe the benefits of trail development outweigh the potential negative impacts? 
 Indicate how much you personally agree with the following statement. 
 Generally, the benefits of trail development outweigh the potential negative impacts. 

o Strongly Disagree  (1)  

o Somewhat Disagree  (2)  

o Neither Agree nor Disagree  (3)  

o Somewhat Agree  (4)  

o Strongly Agree  (5)  
 

End of Block: Benefits and Concerns  
Start of Block: Current State 

 
 
Q11 How would you rate the current state of trail maintenance within the Chehalem Park and 
Recreation District? 

o Excellent  (1)  

o Good  (2)  

o Fair  (3)  

o Poor  (4)  

o Don't know  (0)  
 
 
Page Break  
  



 Page 13 of 30 

 
Q12 Are you familiar with the Chehalem Heritage Trails Master Plan? 

o Yes  (1)  

o No  (2)  
 
 
Page Break  
  



 Page 14 of 30 

 
Q13 Have you ever encountered any problems or conflicts while using local trails? (e.g., 
overcrowding, irresponsible behavior, inadequate facilities) 

o Yes  (1)  

o No  (2)  

o Don't Know  (3)  
 
 
Page Break  
  



 Page 15 of 30 

Display This Question: 

If Q13 = Yes 

 
Q14 If you answered "Yes" to the previous question, please briefly describe the problem or 
conflict you encountered. 

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Page Break  
  



 Page 16 of 30 

 
 
Q15 Do you believe the amount, variety, and accessibility of trails within the Chehalem Park and 
Recreation District are adequate? 
 Indicate how much you agree with the following statements. 

 Strongly 
Disagree (1) 

Somewhat 
Disagree (2) 

Neither Agree 
nor Disagree 

(3) 

Somewhat 
Agree (4) 

Strongly 
Agree (5) 

The amount 
(total 

mileage) of 
trails within 

the 
Chehalem 
Park and 

Recreation 
District is 

adequate. (1)  

o  o  o  o  o  

The variety of 
hiking, biking, 

and 
equestrian 
trails (user 
type) within 

the 
Chehalem 
Park and 

Recreation 
District is 

adequate. (2)  

o  o  o  o  o  

The 
accessibility 

of trails within 
the 

Chehalem 
Park and 

Recreation 
District is 

adequate. (3)  

o  o  o  o  o  

 
 
 
Page Break  
  



Page 17 of 30 

Q16 How concerned are you about the future state of trails within the Chehalem Park and 
Recreation District? 

o Extremely Concerned  (1)

o Moderately Concerned  (2)

o Somewhat Concerned  (3)

o Slightly Concerned  (4)

o Not Concerned At All  (5)

End of Block: Current State 

Start of Block: Path Forward 

Q17 Do you support the addition of trails within the Chehalem Park and Recreation District? 

o Strongly Oppose  (1)

o Somewhat Oppose  (2)

o Neither Oppose nor Support  (3)

o Somewhat Support  (4)

o Strongly Support  (5)

Page Break 



 Page 18 of 30 

 
 
Q18 How likely are you to support funding sources for trail development and maintenance? 
 

 Extremely 
Unlikely (1) 

Somewhat 
Unlikely (2) 

Neither 
Unlikely nor 

Likely (3) 

Somewhat 
Likely (4) 

Extremely 
Likely (5) 

Property 
Taxes on 

Real Property 
(1)  

o  o  o  o  o  
System 

Development 
Fees on New 
Construction 

(2)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Temporary 
Tax Levy on 

Real Property 
(3)  

o  o  o  o  o  
User Fees 

(e.g. Parking 
Fees) at 

Trailheads (4)  
o  o  o  o  o  

State or 
Federal 

Grants (5)  o  o  o  o  o  
In-Kind 

Donations (6)  o  o  o  o  o  
 
 
 
Page Break  
  



 Page 19 of 30 

 
Q19 How much are you willing to pay for trail development and maintenance? (e.g. in property 
taxes, through a temporary tax levy, or by parking fees) 

o $250/year  (1)  

o $100/year  (2)  

o $50/year  (3)  

o $25/year  (4)  

o Less than $25/year  (5)  

o I would not be willing to pay for trail development and maintenance.  (6)  
 
 
Page Break  
  



 Page 20 of 30 

 
Q20 How interested are you in participating in on-the-ground, staff-guided, volunteer 
maintenance events? 

o Not Interested at All  (1)  

o Slightly Interested  (2)  

o Somewhat Interested  (3)  

o Moderately Interested  (4)  

o Extremely Interested  (5)  
 
 
Page Break  
  



 Page 21 of 30 

 
Q39 How interested are you in participating in on-the-ground, staff-guided hikes and educational 
events? 

o Not Interested at All  (1)  

o Slightly Interested  (2)  

o Somewhat Interested  (3)  

o Moderately Interested  (4)  

o Extremely Interested  (5)  
 
 
Page Break  
  



 Page 22 of 30 

 
Q21 How interested are you in participating in public forums and community meetings related to 
trail maintenance and development led by a neutral facilitator? 

o Not Interested at All  (1)  

o Slightly Interested  (2)  

o Somewhat Interested  (3)  

o Moderately Interested  (4)  

o Extremely Interested  (5)  
 
 
Page Break  
  



 Page 23 of 30 

 
Q22 What forms of community engagement in trail development and maintenance decision-
making would you support? 

▢ Community Meetings  (1)  

▢ Focus groups, led by neutral facilitators  (2)  

▢ Public Forums, led by neutral facilitators  (3)  

▢ Surveys, designed to avoid biases and survey errors  (4)  

▢ Recreation Events  (5)  

▢ Volunteer Events  (6)  

▢ Other (please specify)  (7) 
__________________________________________________ 

 

End of Block: Path Forward  
Start of Block: Additional Comments 
 
Q26 If you have any additional comments or suggestions about the future of trails in the 
Chehalem Park and Recreation District, please share them here. 

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 
 

End of Block: Additional Comments  
Start of Block: Demographic Information 
 



 Page 24 of 30 

Q27 What is your age? 

o 18-24  (1)  

o 25-34  (2)  

o 35-44  (3)  

o 45-54  (4)  

o 55-64  (5)  

o 65 or older  (6)  

o Prefer Not to Say  (7)  
 
 
Page Break  
  



Page 25 of 30 

Q28 What is your gender? 

o Man  (1)

o Woman  (2)

o Non-binary  (3)

o Prefer Not to Say  (4)

Page Break 



 Page 26 of 30 

 
Q29 What is your ethnicity? (You may select multiple options) 

▢ White  (1)  

▢ Hispanic or Latino  (2)  

▢ Black or African American  (3)  

▢ Native American or American Indian  (4)  

▢ Asian/Pacific Islander  (5)  

▢ Prefer Not to Say  (6)  

▢ Other (please specify)  (7) 
__________________________________________________ 

 
 
Page Break  
  



Page 27 of 30 

Q30 What is your highest level of education? 

o Less Than High School  (1)

o High School Graduate or Equivalent  (2)

o Some College or 2-Year Degree  (3)

o 4-Year Degree  (4)

o Graduate Degree  (5)

o Prefer Not to Say  (6)

Page Break 



Page 28 of 30 

Q31 What is your annual household income? 

o Less than $25,000  (1)

o $25,000 to $49,999  (2)

o $50,000 to $74,999  (3)

o $75,000 to $99,999  (4)

o $100,000 to $149,999  (5)

o More than $150,000  (6)

o Prefer Not to Say  (7)

Page Break 



Page 29 of 30 

Q40 How many of your household members are people under the age of 18? 

o 1  (1)

o 2  (2)

o 3  (3)

o 4 or more  (4)

o Prefer Not to Say  (5)

Page Break 



Page 30 of 30 

Q32 Would you like to stay informed about trail development and maintenance (news) within 
Chehalem Park and Recreation District? 

o Yes  (1)

o No  (2)

Q33 Would you like to stay informed about trail maintenance volunteering opportunities within 
Chehalem Park and Recreation District? 

o Yes  (1)

o No  (2)

Q34 Would you like to be entered into the prize drawing for a one (1) quarter Chehalem Aquatic 
and Fitness Center Family Membership? 

o Yes  (1)

o No  (2)

Display This Question: 

If Q32 = Yes 

Or Q33 = Yes 

Or Q34 = Yes 

Q35 If you answered "Yes" to any of the previous questions, please provide your email address. 

________________________________________________________________ 

End of Block: Demographic Information 




